North East Durham

Durham

(G.20.4213/2008)

Parish: Sherburn

NZ31804340

Postal Code: DH6 1AA

BROOMSIDE HOUSE, SHERBURN Broomside House, Sherburn, County Durham. Archaeological Desk-based Assessment and Building Recording

Adams, J, Annis, R & Claydon, M Durham : University of Durham, Archaeological Services, Report: 1822 2008, 44pp, colour pls, figs, tabs, refs

Work undertaken by: University of Durham, Archaeological Services

There were eight Listed Buildings with dates ranging from the 11th to the19th century, and one Scheduled Ancient Monument to the east of the survey area. The site did not lay within a Conservation Area. There were a number of cropmarks identified from aerial photographs in the area around the site. Most of these were of undetermined date, and two may have been Iron Age. Roman evidence in the area was scant, though Roman coins had been found at Hallgarth to the east of the study area. The area was occupied during the medieval and post-medieval periods, when the study area was probably in use as agricultural land. Broomside House was first recorded in the period 1844-50. The farmhouse and buildings were characteristic of their period. None of the structures were of any particular significance, the older buildings had been altered or removed, as changes in farming practice dictated. As a group, the Broomside House was a typical and unexceptional example of a 19th century County Durham farmstead. [Au(abr)]

Archaeological periods represented: PM OASIS ID: archaeol3-38359

Easington

(G.20.4214/2008)

NZ4131843454

Parish: EASINGTON VILLAGE

Postal Code: SR8 3BP

OASIS DATABASE: THE SCHOOL AIR RAID SHELTERS, EASINGTON C.E. PRIMARY SCHOOL, COUNTY DURHAM

The Air Raid Shelters, Easington C.E. Primary School - Buildings Survey, Outreach and Watching Brief Report

Hardie, C and Middleton, P Durham : Archaeo-Environment Ltd., Report: Rpt No. 0036-1/08 2008, Spiral bound A4 report, 42 pages of text plus illustrations all bound in a single volume. Document also saved on disk as a word document and PDF

Work undertaken by: Archaeo-Environment Ltd.

"In February 1940, plans were drawn up to build four air raid shelters for the young children attending the village school in Easington., County Durham. The area was targeted by the Germans in order to destroy the coal industry and the wealth of engineering and manufacturing sites, as well as ports and harbours, along the East Coast. Some 67 years later, in 2007, Easington CE Primary School, now located in a new building within the grounds of the old village school, sought permission to demolish two of their four air raid shelters in order to create more car parking space. The shelters had been capped and buried since the end of the war in 1945. A planning condition was imposed requiring that the shelters be recorded before being demolished and that an outreach programme take place with the school children. Archaeo-Environment was commissioned to carry out this work which was divided into three parts: survey, outreach and watching brief." [OASIS]

OASIS ID: archaeoe1-40338

Wear Valley

(G.20.4215/2008)

Parish: Stanhope

NZ03803660

Postal Code: DL132SQ

'THE HIND'S COTTAGE', BROADWOOD, FROSTERLEY Report on an Archaeological Building Recording Project of 'The Hind's Cottage', Broadwood, Frosterley, Co. Durham

Wooler, F Alston : North Pennines Archaeology Ltd., Report: CP/830/08 2008, 48pp, colour pls, figs, tabs, refs

Work undertaken by: North Pennines Archaeology Ltd.

An archaeological building recording was undertaken of a redundant property known as 'The Hind's Cottage' and adjoining byre. The redundant buildings were attached to the grade II Listed property, Broadwood, one of several farms in the valley created in the 12th century when land was being enclosed from waste. A map of 1610 suggested that there may have been an important house at Broadwood at that date, but this was not repeated on later mapping, and it was not until the middle of the 19th century that the form of the buildings, which appeared to include the 'Hind's Cottage' and the byre, were accurately shown. The building recording revealed that the 'Hind's Cottage' was an example of a two-storey, singlepile cottage, more latterly used by farm servant's or 'hinds', with a single-storey extension to the north housing a semi-circular bread oven. The byre displayed some evidence of being the earlier of the two structures, and may have been an example of a bastle-derivative house. There was also evidence that the byre, or at least the first floor of the byre, had been used as living accommodation. The 'Hind's Cottage' and the adjoining byre were examples of vernacular structures which may predate the other buildings on the site, but were utilised to form the northern range of the present farmstead. There was no evidence for the modernisation of the cottage, despite it being occupied until the middle of the 20th century. [Au(abr)]

OASIS ID: northpen3-52382

Former County of Tyne & Wear

Gateshead

(G.05.4216/2008)

NZ25606120

Postal Code: NE9 5AF

Parish: Gateshead GATESHEAD COLLEGE, DURHAM ROAD, GATESHEAD Gateshead College, Durham Road, Gateshead. Desk -based Assessment and Photographic Survey

Gow, A & MacFadyen, K Edinburgh : Addyman Archaeology, Report: 1672 2008, 73pp, colour pls, figs, refs

Work undertaken by: Addyman Archaeology

Gateshead college comprised a number of building constructed at different stages. Only two of these buildings were relevant to this study, North Dene House and the main block of the college. North Dene was a locally Listed Building, the oldest building on the site and was located towards the southern end of the site. This two storey neo-classical villa was constructed from ashlar sandstone and roofed in Welsh slate. In 2008 it was surrounded by temporary buildings, including portacabins. North Dean was converted into a college building in the early 1950s. The other building was a 1950s college block. [Au(abr)]

SMR primary record number: 2008/86 Archaeological periods represented: MO, PM OASIS ID: addymana1-45245

(G.05.4217/2008)

Parish:

NZ27146219

Postal Code: NE100BD

WORKSHOPS AT SUNDERLAND ROAD, USED CAR SALES, FELLING, GATESHEAD

Workshops at Sunderland Road, Used Car Sales, Felling, Gateshead. Historic Building Recording

Williams, A Newcastle upon Tyne : Alan Williams Archaeology, 2008, 27pp, colour pls, figs, tabs, refs

Work undertaken by: Alan Williams Archaeology

The standing building, recently used as workshops and as a car sales outlet, was a remnant of a larger structure constructed by Walter Scott as a printing works. [Au(abr)]

SMR primary record number: 2008/180 Archaeological periods represented: PM OASIS ID: alanwill1-52020

(G.05.4218/2008)

NZ29706220

Parish: Heworth

Postal Code: NE100QE

PELAW SHIRT FACTORY, SHIELDS ROAD, PELAW, GATESHEAD Pelaw Shirt Factory, Shields Road, Pelaw, Gateshead. Archaeological Desk-based Assessment and Historic Buildings Recording

Scott, J & Strickland, J South Shields : Tyne & Wears Museum Archaeology Department, 2008, 59pp, colour pls, figs, tabs, refs

Work undertaken by: Tyne & Wears Museum Archaeology Department

A survey was made of the Methodist Church and factory, which were constructed between 1919 and 1939. Six World War II underground air-raid shelters were also present on the site. The Pelaw shirt factory was built in 1920s and appeared on the local list of buildings of historic and architectural significance. [Au(abr)]

SMR primary record number: 2008/197 Archaeological periods represented: MO OASIS ID: tyneandw3-43177

(G.05.4219/2008)

Parish: Lamesley

NZ24505540

Postal Code: DH2 1TX **RIDING FARM, RIDING LANE, KIBBLESWORTH, GATESHEAD** Archaeological Building Recording of Riding Farm, Riding Lane, Kibblesworth, Gateshead, Tyne and Wear

Peters, C & Wooler, F Alston : North Pennines Archaeology Ltd., Report: CP/622/08 2008, 71pp, colour pls, figs, refs

Work undertaken by: North Pennines Archaeology Ltd.

The research indicated that there appeared to have been settlement in some form at Riding since at least the 14th century. The building survey found that only two of the original 19th century farm buildings survived on the site. Many of the other buildings, including an apsidal gin-gang, were demolished in the 1960s and 1970s after the construction of modern large sheds to the north-west of the farm. The buildings that survived consisted of an open-fronted cattle shed or cart shed with granary over, and a byre or stable with hayloft above. [Au(abr)]

SMR primary record number: 2008/12 Archaeological periods represented: PM OASIS ID: northpen3-38568

(G.05.4220/2008)

Parish: Ryton MOOR HOUSE, RYTON Archaeological Building Recording at Moor House, Ryton

Carey, C Gateshead : Archaeological Research Services, Report: 2008/28 2008, 42pp, colour pls, figs, tabs, refs

Work undertaken by: Archaeological Research Services

Historic mapping showed that the Moor House and the associated barn which was the present workshop were constructed in 1858 but no earlier maps were found during the investigation that showed the buildings in detail and an exact date for construction could not be assigned. The breaking of the ground for Towneley Main Colliery occurred in 1847 and it was possible that the house and barn were built around this time. Hedgefield House to the east of the study area was constructed in 1840 and was similar in style to Moor House. Bradley Hall in Crawcrook to the west was also of similar style and was constructed in 1750, suggesting that Moor House could have been built as early as the mid-18th century. [Au(abr)]

SMR primary record number: 2008/26, MON5304 *Archaeological periods represented:* PM OASIS ID: archaeol5-38737

(G.05.4221/2008)

NZ16506430

Parish:

Postal Code: NE214NW

ST. HILDA'S CHURCH, HEDGEFIELD, RYTON, GATESHEAD Archaeological Building Recording of St. Hilda's Church, Hedgefield, Ryton, Gateshead, Tyne and Wear

Peters, C & Wooler, F Alston : North Pennines Archaeology Ltd., 2008, 75pp, colour pls, figs, refs

Work undertaken by: North Pennines Archaeology Ltd.

The building recording found that St. Hilda's was a nice example of a late 19th century church built in the Arts and Crafts style. Externally, the church contained elements of the style of architecture such as mock battlements, arrow slits and Gothic windows as well as the unusual feature of random patches of red sandstone amongst the dominant yellow masonry. Internally, the chancel was originally the main focus of the building, decorated in vivid reds and greens, some of which still survived on the woodwork. Illustrated canvases on the ceiling of the chancel were removed in the 1950s although their design could still be seen. [Au(abr)]

SMR primary record number: 2008/23 Archaeological periods represented: PM OASIS ID: northpen3-40138

(G.05.4222/2008)

NZ18555991

NZ14206390

Postal Code: NE403TW

Building Recording

Parish: Whickham

OLD HOLLINSIDE, WHICKHAM, GATESHEAD

Postal Code: NE165BA

Old Hollinside, Whickham, Gateshead. The Medieval Manor House. A Preliminary Architectural & Archaeological Assessment (1994/5). Updated to Include Archaeological Recording During Conservation Works 2008

Ryder, P Riding Mill : Peter F Ryder, 2008, 30pp, colour pls, figs, refs *Work undertaken by:* Peter F Ryder

Several surviving features seemed to relate to remodelling, presumably by the Hardinge family prior to abandonment around 1730. Recommendations were made to protect the building against vandalism. [Au(adp)]

SMR primary record number: 2008/93 Archaeological periods represented: PM OASIS ID: no

Newcastle-upon-Tyne

(G.05.4223/2008)

Parish: Benwell

NZ20706440

Postal Code: NE156UP

BENWELL PUMPING STATION Benwell Pumping Station, Newcastle-upon-Tyne. Archaeological Assessment and Historic Buildings Record

Carlton, R J Newcastle upon Tyne : The Archaeological Practice Ltd., 2008, 37pp, pls, colour pls, figs, refs

Work undertaken by: The Archaeological Practice Ltd.

The site of the Benwell Waterworks appeared to have remained undeveloped until the mid-19th century when the waterworks was constructed by the Whittle and Dean Water company. Although it had been undeveloped there was no direct evidence for previous human activity on the site, apart from the post-medieval parking, despite the close proximity of Conderdum vicus and the early medieval village. The existing pumping stations were recorded. [Au(abr)]

SMR primary record number: 2008/35 Archaeological periods represented: PM OASIS ID: thearcha2-39975

(G.05.4224/2008)

NZ20626391

Postal Code: NE15 6HE

Parish: Pos SCOTSWOOD HOUSING EXPO SITE Scotswood Housing Expo Site Investigation, Newcastle-upon-Tyne

The Archaeological Practice Ltd.Newcastle upon Tyne : The Archaeological Practice Ltd., 2008, 17pp, colour pls, figs, refs

Work undertaken by: The Archaeological Practice Ltd.

The structures recorded comprised a bridge abutment, railway tunnels, a retaining wall and stairwells associated with the former line of the Newcastle and Carlisle Railway. These were significant survivals of the 19th century industrial period in the development of the region and should be preserved and maintained as part of the redeveloped cityscape. [Au(abr)]

Archaeological periods represented: PM OASIS ID: no

Building Recording

(G.05.4225/2008)

Parish: Coxlodge

NZ24706390

Postal Code: NE3 4DE

HAWTHORN WORKS BUILDING, NORTH ELEVATION, STEPHENSON QUARTER

Hawthorn Works Building, North Elevation, Stephenson Quarter. Historic Buildings Recording. Interim Report

Scott, J South Shields : Tyne & Wears Museum Archaeology Department, Report: 454 2008, 32pp, colour pls, figs, refs *Work undertaken by:* Tyne & Wears Museum Archaeology Department The building recording recorded three phases of building at the works. [Au(adp)]

SMR primary record number: 2008/164 *Archaeological periods represented:* PM OASIS ID: tyneandw3-46807

(G.05.4226/2008)

NZ23806780

Parish:

Postal Code: NE3 4DX

SANDERSON HOSPITAL, SALTER'S ROAD, GOSFORTH Historical Assessment and Photographic Recording at the Sanderson Hospital, Salter's Road, Gosforth

Turnbull, P Barnard Castle : Brigantia Archaeological Practice, 2008, 48pp, colour pls, figs, refs

Work undertaken by: Brigantia Archaeological Practice

The Sanderson Hospital operated in various guises for over a hundred years on the Alter's Road site. Originally, it was established as a home for destitute and crippled children. From the earlier period, the survey showed that a phased extension of buildings on the site was intended. The first phase occurred immediately before the Great War with subsequent additions during the 1920s and 1930s. [Au(abr)]

SMR primary record number: 2008/18 Archaeological periods represented: MO, PM OASIS ID: no

(G.05.4227/2008)

Postal Code: NE4 6JG

NZ23506420

Parish: Fenham BALMORAL HOTEL, NEWCASTLE UPON TYNE (II)

An Archaeological Desk-based Assessment and Photographic Building Recording at the Balmoral Hotel, Newcastle-upon-Tyne

Amat D, Hewitt R & Carey C Gateshead : Archaeological Research Services, Report: 2008/46 2008, 44pp, colour pls, figs, refs

Work undertaken by: Archaeological Research Services

Building recording identified the street facing facades of the east and south elevations as the most important in terms of the historic character of the building. Although all of the existing external walls were original, those that were originally joined to other properties were of a rough sandstone rubble construction, rendered over with grey mortar. [Au(abr)]

SMR primary record number: 2008/96 Archaeological periods represented: PM OASIS ID: archaeol5-43968 (G.05.4228/2008)

Parish: Jesmond

NZ25106610

Postal Code: NE2 3BG

JESMOND OLD CEMETERY WALLS AND SOUTH GATEHOUSE Jesmond Old Cemetery Walls and South Gatehouse. Photogrammetric Recording

Scott, J South Shields : Tyne & Wears Museum Archaeology Department. 2008. 42pp. colour pls. fias

Work undertaken by: Tyne & Wears Museum Archaeology Department

Targets were placed along the walls at specific heights and at accurately measured intervals. This was achieved by setting a datum line along the wall using an automatic level. By these means, the current condition of the walls surrounding the Jesmond Old Cemetery and the south gatehouse along Sandyford Road were recorded. [Au(abr)]

SMR primary record number: 2008/64 Archaeological periods represented: UD OASIS ID: tyneandw3-42109

(G.05.4229/2008)

NZ21866755

Parish: Kenton

Postal Code: NE3 3EF

KENTON HALL NURSING HOME. KENTON LANE. KENTON Kenton Hall Nursing Home, Kenton Lane, Kenton, Newcastle, Report on Archaeological Desk-based Assessment and Photographic Recording

Ian Farmer Associates Newcastle upon Tyne : Ian Farmer Associates, 2008, 46pp, colour pls, figs, tabs, refs

Work undertaken by: Ian Farmer Associates

An assessment found little evidence for the Hall's age and history beyond being clearly shown on an estate plan in 1841. The survey showed that while the primary building was intended to be two storeys high, the southern facade possibly started out as part of an outhouse that had been progressively extended. Although stable like in appearance, little evidence survived as to the original function of the internally heavily remodelled kitchen block. [Au(abr)]

SMR primary record number: 2008/45 Archaeological periods represented: PM OASIS ID: inafarme1-40192

(G.05.4230/2008)

NZ24906370

Postal Code: NE1 3NG

Parish: Newcastle-upon-Tvne FRIAR HOUSE, CLAVERING PLACE, NEWCASTLE-UPON-TYNE Friar House, Clavering Place, Newcastle-upon-Tyne. Historic Buildings Assessment and Survey

Archaeo-Environment Ltd. Lartington : Archaeo-Environment Ltd., Report: 0050/1-08 2008, 63pp, colour pls, figs, tabs, refs

Work undertaken by: Archaeo-Environment Ltd.

Despite the modifications and changes of use, Friar House had retained many of its original features. It was a classic example of late Georgian town house and embodied many of the characteristics of the style including a balance, proportion and a symmetry of design. The building retained many original features, including a large Venetian window. [Au(abr)]

SMR primary record number: 2008/118 Archaeological periods represented: PM OASIS ID: no

(G.05.4231/2008)

NZ250637

Parish:

OASIS DATABASE: 28-30 THE CLOSE, NEWCASTLE UPON TYNE 28-30 The Close, Newcastle upon Tyne, Tyne and Wear: tree-ring analysis of timbers: scientific dating report

Arnold, A., Howard R. and Tyers, C. Portsmouth : English Heritage, Report: 56-2008 2008, A4 heat-bound report (ISSN 1749-8775) Work undertaken by: English Heritage "Tree-ring analysis of timbers from the former grain warehouse recorded felling dates spanning the period from 1407-25 to 1616 AD. " [OASIS]

OASIS ID: englishh2-57260

(G.05.4232/2008)

Parish:

NZ245674

Postal Code: NE3

OASIS DATABASE: ARCHAEOLOGICAL BUILDING RECORDING OF 49 **GRAHAM PARK ROAD, GOSFORTH, NEWCASTLE**

Archaeological Building Recording of 49 Graham Park Road, Gosforth, Newcastle upon Tyne

Peters, C and Wooler, FNenthead : North Pennines Archaeology Ltd, Report: CP/708/08 2008, Softbound, 77 pages, colour photographs and 11 figures Work undertaken by: North Pennines Archaeology Ltd

"Building recording project of one flat in a Grade II listed building, constructed in 1951-52 by Gosforth Urban District Council. Clifford Wyld, District Surveyor. No.49 retains some of its original features such as radiators, bathroom suite, kitchen units and fireplace." [OASIS]

OASIS ID: northpen3-43850

(G.05.4233/2008)

NZ247636

Postal Code: NE1 3NB

Parish: OASIS DATABASE: COPPERSMITH'S SHOP. STEPHENSON QUARTER ADDENDUM REPORT

Coppersmith's Shop, Stephenson Quarter, Newcastle upon Tyne - Historic Buildings **Recording Addendum Report**

Arbeia Roman Fort South Shields : TWM Archaeology, Scott, J. and Donaldson M. Report: 265 2008, A4 spirally bound Work undertaken by: TWM Archaeology

"Coppersmith's Shop, Stephenson Quarter, Newcastle upon Tyne - Historic Buildings Recording Addendum Report. " [OASIS]

OASIS ID: tyneandw3-46780

Building Recording

(G.05.4234/2008)

NZ247636

Parish:

Postal Code: NE1 3XX

OASIS DATABASE: FURNACE AND SANDSTONE WALL, STEPHENSON QUARTER - ADDENDUM REPORT TO ARCHAEOLOGICAL BUILDINGS RECORDING

Furnace and Sandstone Wall, Stephenson Quarter - Historic Buildings Recording Addendum Report

Scott, J. Arbeia Roman Fort, South Shields : TWM Archaeology, Report: Addendum to Report Number 265 2008, Photographs and negatives in archival pockets, with CD-R in A4 ring binder

Work undertaken by: TWM Archaeology

"Furnace and Sandstone Wall, Stephenson Quarter - Addendum Report to Archaeological Buildings Recording Additional B and W print, Colour print and Digital photography." [OASIS]

OASIS ID: tyneandw3-44661

(G.05.4235/2008)

Parish:

NZ24816363

Postal Code: NE1 3NB

OASIS DATABASE: J. T. DOVE'S SHOWROOM, STEPHENSON QUARTER J. T. Dove's Showroom Building East Elevation, Stephenson Quarter - Historic Buildings Recording Addendum Report

Scott, J. Arbeia Roman Fort, South Shields : TWM Archaeology, Report: Report Number 454 2008, 25 pages A4 spirally bound

Work undertaken by: TWM Archaeology

"J. T. Dove's Showroom East Elevation, Stephenson Quarter - Historic Buildings Recording Addendum Report. " [OASIS]

OASIS ID: tyneandw3-45071

(G.05.4236/2008)

NZ25116381

Parish:

Postal Code: NE1 3RE

OASIS DATABASE: MANSION HOUSE CHAMBERS, 8 - 10 THE CLOSE Mansion House Chambers, 8 - 10 The Close, Newcastle upon Tyne - Historic Buildings Recording

Scott, J. Arbeia Roman Fort South Shields : TWM Archaeology, Report: Report Number 841 2008, A4 spirally bound approx. 40 pages *Work undertaken by:* TWM Archaeology "Mansion House Chambers, 8 - 10 The Close, Newcastle upon Tyne - Historic Buildings Recording. " [OASIS]

OASIS ID: tyneandw3-47758

(G.05.4237/2008)

NZ26406420

Parish: Newcastle-upon-Tyne All Saints **OUSEBURN BARRAGE**

Postal Code: NE6 1LP

Ouseburn Barrage. Photographic Recording of Lower Steenberg's Yard and Ouseburn Quay Walls, Glass Houses Bridge, Newcastle-upon-Tyne

Mabbitt, JGosforth : Entec UK Ltd., 2008, 34pp, colour pls, figs, refsWork undertaken by:Entec UK Ltd.A section of 20m quay wall on each bank of the Ouseburne beneath Glass Houses Bridge, anenclosed yard and a single storey warehouse were recorded. [Au(abr)]

SMR primary record number: 2008/47 Archaeological periods represented: PM OASIS ID: entecukl1-44448

(G.05.4238/2008)

NZ26206440

Parish:

Postal Code: NE1 2PL

OUSEBURN VALLEY HOMING SOCIETY, LIME STREET, NEWCASTLE-UPON-TYNE

Ouseburn Valley Homing Society, Lime Street, Newcastle-upon-Tyne. Report on Archaeological Recording

Farmer, I Newcastle upon Tyne : Ian Farmer Associates, Report: 30328 2008, 25pp, colour pls, figs, refs

Work undertaken by: Ian Farmer Associates

The photographic survey recorded the clubhouse, consisting of a post-WWII prefabricated house and an upper and lower pigeon loft. These were put into the regional context of possibly the last surviving prefab in the valley along with evidence for pigeon racing, a long-established pastime in the North East. [Au(abr)]

SMR primary record number: 2008/62 Archaeological periods represented: MO OASIS ID: inafarme1-42752

(G.05.4239/2008)

NZ24606510

Parish: Newcastle-upon-Tyne St. Andrew Postal Code: NE1 7RX **FORMER BREWERY BUILDINGS AT NEWCASTLE UNIVERSITY** *Former Brewery Buildings at Newcastle University, The Old Brewery, Newcastle-upon-Tyne. Desk-based Assessment and Recording*

Spence & Dower Chartered Architects and Northern Counties Archaeological Services Morpeth : Spence & Dower Chartered Architects and Northern Counties Archaeological Services, 2008, 107pp, pls, figs, refs

Work undertaken by: Spence & Dower Chartered Architects, Northern Counties Archaeological Services

The Jones Marine Building occupied part of the site of the Leazes Brewery established in 1837 in the premises previously used as the water powered Snuff Mill, built c. 1782. The earliest structural remains within the Jones Marine Building were two parallel brick built ranges, built after 1782 but before 1831, which formed part of the later use of the snuff manufactory. It was possible that one, if not both, were part of a rebuilding after a fire at the Snuff Mill in 1788. [Au(abr)]

SMR primary record number: 2008/21 Archaeological periods represented: PM OASIS ID: northern2-40924 (G.05.4240/2008)

NZ24606510

Postal Code: NE1 8TW

Parish: TRANSPORT HOUSE (LEAZES HOUSE) The Old Brewery/Transport House (Leazes H

The Old Brewery/Transport House [Leazes House], Newcastle University, Newcastleupon-Tyne

Spence & Dower Chartered Architects & Northern Counties Archaeological Services Morpeth : Spence & Dower Chartered Architects & Northern Counties Archaeological Services, 2008, 52pp, pls, figs, refs

Work undertaken by: Spence & Dower Chartered Architects, Northern Counties Archaeological Services

Leazes House was designed as a dwelling house and had retained its domestic layout and function. From 1837 to 1968 it formed part of the Leazes Brewery. The building was of significance historically as part of an 18th century industrial complex designed by John Smeaton. [Au(abr)]

SMR primary record number: 2008/44 Archaeological periods represented: PM OASIS ID: no

(G.05.4241/2008)

NZ25116381

Postal Code: NE21 6HA

Parish: Winlaton Pos MANSION HOUSE CHAMBERS, 8-10 THE CLOSE Mansion House Chambers, 8-10 The Close, Newcastle-upon-Tyne

Scott, J South Shields : Tyne & Wears Museum Archaeology Department, Report: 841 2008, 51pp, colour pls, figs, refs

Work undertaken by: Tyne & Wears Museum Archaeology Department

The buildings consisted of a late-Georgian frontage of c.1830 date, with an attached Victorian mid-section and 20th century additions at the rear of the site. The Georgian elements were typical of the period and internally some period features from this phase survived within the building. Similarly, the exterior architectural style of the historic elements of the building were typical of their time and some elements of interesting historic fabric survived within the building. Much of the rear of the site was made up of later additions and alterations to the building and had little historical interest. [Au(abr)]

SMR primary record number: 2008/170 Archaeological periods represented: PM OASIS ID: tyneandw-47758

(G.05.4243/2008)

NZ19657114

Parish: Postal Code: NE138DG THE BELLAMAN HANGAR, NEWCASTLE INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT The Bellaman Hangar, Newcastle International Airport. Historic Buildings Recording

Scott, J & Strickland, J South Shields : Tyne & Wears Museum Archaeology Department, Report: 325 2008, 76pp, colour pls, figs, refs

Work undertaken by: Tyne & Wears Museum Archaeology Department

The hangar consisted of a steel frame covered with corrugated metal sheeting. Bellman hangars were designed to be transportable structures which could be quickly and easily erected by unskilled labour. As all were mass-produced to an Air Ministry design, the details

of the type of this structure were well documented. No further archaeological recording was recommended. [Au(abr)]

SMR primary record number: 2008/107 Archaeological periods represented: MO OASIS ID: tyneandw3-45774

North Tyneside

(G.05.4244/2008)

Parish: Burradon

NZ27507300

Postal Code: NE237ND

BURRADON FARM, BURRADON VILLAGE, CRAMLINGTON An Archaeological Building Recording of Burradon Farm, Burradon Village, Cramlington, Tyne & Wear

Johnson, B & Amat, D Gateshead : Archaeological Research Services, Report: 2008/78 2008, 48pp, colour pls, figs, tabs, refs

Work undertaken by: Archaeological Research Services

The barn structures were developed in the 19th century and were predominantly built of rough sandstone blocks in a greyish mortar with sandstone ashlar blocks. The window and door revealed sandstone ashlar quoins. The structure had been extensively remodelled inside as a modern cattle shed with bricks and concrete supports for feed troughs. No evidence of the 19th century steam engine or other fixtures or fittings were noted. [Au(abr)]

SMR primary record number: 2008/171 Archaeological periods represented: PM OASIS ID: archaeol5-50867

(G.05.4245/2008)

NZ27007240

Postal Code: NE237NQ

Parish: Longbenton BURRADON PRIMARY SCHOOL, BURRADON Burradon Primary School, Burradon. Historic Building Record

Carlton, R J Newcastle upon Tyne : The Archaeological Practice Ltd., 2008, 34pp, pls, colour pls, figs, refs

Work undertaken by: The Archaeological Practice Ltd.

The school dated to the mid-19th century when Burradon was a thriving mining village and was probably largely or exclusively funded by the colliers of the Burradon Colliery for their families. It was a Board School by 1897 and was largely rebuilt in 1904. The former school was of some architectural merit and interest in the context of its historic setting. [Au(abr)]

SMR primary record number: 2008/65 Archaeological periods represented: PM OASIS ID: thearcha2-43118

(G.05.4246/2008)

NZ33207070

Postal Code: NE29 8QE

Parish: Murton RAKE HOUSE FARM, NORTH SHIELDS Northumberland Estates. Rake House Farm, North Shields

Mabbitt, J Gosforth : Entec UK Ltd., 2008, 23pp, colour pls, figs, refs

Work undertaken by: Entec UK Ltd.

A record was made of the site which consisted of a group of disused farm buildings of early 19th century date. The core of these building were designed as a planned farm along the lines of the model farms constructed mainly by the owners of large estates from the late-18th century onwards. While the farmhouse was largely intact, the outbuildings were dilapidated and roofless, the upper store of the central range appeared to have been deliberately demolished. [Au(adp)]

SMR primary record number: 2008/71 Archaeological periods represented: PM OASIS ID: entecukl1-44788

(G.05.4247/2008)

NZ35377264

Parish: Whitley Postal Code: NE261LT THE SPANISH CITY, WHITLEY BAY, NORTH TYNESIDE The Spanish City, Whitley Bay, North Tyneside, Historic Building Recording

Strickland, J South Shields : Tyne & Wears Museum Archaeology Department, Report: 859 2008, 37pp, colour pls, figs, tabs, refs

Work undertaken by: Tyne & Wears Museum Archaeology Department

The Spanish City was an early example of the use of Ferro-concrete in the construction of a leisure building. Listed Building consent was granted for alterations and extensions to the building that included the removal of two unstable stair towers leading from the first floor to a flat roof. Due to the instability of the west stair tower, the east stair tower was the only one that could be recorded internally. [Au(abr)]

SMR primary record number: 2008/119 *Archaeological periods represented:* MO OASIS ID: tyneandw3-46763

South Tyneside

(G.05.4248/2008)

NZ34736039

Parish: Boldon Postal Code: NE360AX DOWNHILL HOUSE, WEST BOLDON, SOUTH TYNESIDE Downhill House, West Boldon, South Tyneside. Historic Building Recording

Scott, J South Shields : Tyne & Wears Museum Archaeology Department, Report: 898 2008, 61pp, colour pls, figs, tabs, refs

Work undertaken by: Tyne & Wears Museum Archaeology Department

Downhill house was a good example of Georgian country house with a significant amount of its historic fabric and decorative elements still in situ. Four distinct phases of construction and alteration were noted within the building running from the primary phase of construction c. 1780 to 1820, through modifications made in the Victorian period. [Au(abr)]

SMR primary record number: 2008/166 OASIS ID: tyneandw3-50965

Sunderland

(G.05.4249/2008)

NZ39175958

Parish: Fulwell

Postal Code: SR5 1QE

FULWELL LIME KILNS, MILL GARAGES, SUNDERLAND

An Archaeological Building Recording of Fulwell Lime Kilns, Mill Garages, Sunderland

Carey, C Gateshead : Archaeological Research Services, Report: 2008/71 2008, 39pp, colour pls, figs, tabs, refs

Work undertaken by: Archaeological Research Services

The works were carried out prior to the proposed demolition of a modern building which was constructed against the lime kilns in the 1950s. The kilns were constructed in phases during the 18th and 19th centuries in order to process minerals from the adjacent limestone guarry. These were constructed from coarse limestone rubble with rubble and brick dressings. Three kilns were situated within the showroom, making up the south-west wall. The removal of the modern building would be beneficial to the historic kiln structure, as it would expose those areas presently hidden and would improve the overall setting of the monument. [Au(abr)]

SMR primary record number: 2008/169 Archaeological periods represented: MO, PM OASIS ID: archaeol5-48588

(G.05.4250/2008)

NZ35504670

Parish: Hetton Postal Code: DH5 0EL HETTON LYONS PRIMARY SCHOOL, HETTON LE HOLE An Archaeological Building Recording Hetton Lyons Primary School, Hetton le Hole

Carev. C Gateshead : Archaeological Research Services, Report: 2008/59 2008, 37pp, colour pls, figs, tabs, refs

Work undertaken by: Archaeological Research Services

Very little had changed since the building was first in use from 1912 apart from the replacement of windows with modern double glazing. Internally, most of the doors, door frames and fittings were still intact and the original wall surfaces could still be seen, although they had been painted. The original dado and picture rails were present throughout most of the building. [Au(abr)]

SMR primary record number: 2008/109 Archaeological periods represented: MO OASIS ID: archaeol5-46420

(G.05.4251/2008)

NZ35905870

Postal Code: SR5 3PB

Parish: Hylton 'COAT OF ARMS', HYLETON CASTLE "Coat of Arms", Hylton Castle, Tyne and Wear. 3D Monitoring Survey-Epoch 1

Greenhatch Group Little Eaton : Greenhatch Group & English Heritage, 2008, 68pp, colour pls, tabs

Work undertaken by: English Heritage, Greehatch Group

A 3-D laser scan was made of coat of arms at Hylton Castle in order to aid in the conservation and management of the site. [Au(abr)]

SMR primary record number: 2008/178 Archaeological periods represented: MD OASIS ID: no

(G.05.4252/2008)

Parish: Wallsend

Postal Code: NE28 6RX

170, 171, 173, 174 AND 175 HIGH STREET WEST An Archaeological Recording and Listed Building Appraisal of 170, 171, 173, 174 and 175 High Street West, Sunderland

Amat, D & Carey, C Gateshead : Archaeological Research Services, Report: 2008/69 2008, 41pp, colour pls, figs, tabs, refs

Work undertaken by: Archaeological Research Services

The buildings dated from between the early 1790s and the early 1800s. As 170-175 High Street West were in such a state of disrepair, any proposed works were commended as they would restore the derelict properties into usable concerns. As the shop fronts were not original to the buildings, it was suggested tasteful replacements or modification should be carried out. [Au(abr)]

SMR primary record number: 2008/125 Archaeological periods represented: PM OASIS ID: archaeol5-47884

Redcar & Cleveland

Hartlepool UA

(G.76.4253/2008)

NZ5310033700

Parish: HARTLEPOOL

Postal Code: TS26 OASIS DATABASE: ARCHAEOLOGICAL BUILDING RECORDING PROJECT

AND WATCHING BRIEF AT HEUGH GUN BATTERY, HARTLEPOOL Archaeological Building Recording Project and Watching Brief at Heugh Gun Battery, Hartlepool, Teeside

Wooler, F and Liddell, T Nenthead : North Pennines Archaeology Ltd, Report: CP/538/07 2008, Softbound, 40 pages, including colour photographs and site plan

Work undertaken by: North Pennines Archaeology Ltd

"This watching brief took place during the installation of services across the parade ground at the Heugh Gun Battery. The work recorded a number of foundations of former buildings within the parade ground, although the service trenches were generally shallow in depth and narrow in width provided a limited window of examination. A programme of building recording also took place during the refurbishment of a number of the standing structures at the Heugh Gun Battery (HER 0698). The Barrack Block (HER 6789), Magazine (HER 6784) and Observation Post (HER 6786) were the principal features studied. The records for the work include a written description and photographic recording. The report for the work provides and interpretative account of each structure within the context of the battery." [OASIS]

OASIS ID: northpen3-40125

Hartlepool

(G.59.4254/2008)

Parish: Seaton Carew

NZ52403038

Postal Code: TS251AB

THE STAINCLIFFE HOTEL, SEATON CAREW, HARTLEPOOL Historical Assessment and Photographic Recording at the Staincliffe Hotel, Seaton Carew, Hartlepool

Barnard Castle : Brigantia Archaeological Practice, 2008, 37pp, colour pls, Walsh, D figs, tabs, refs

Work undertaken by: Brigantia Archaeological Practice

A survey found that the building was constructed in 1869 as a large east-facing villa. Much of the interior remained intact from the time of the original construction, as did later additions and extensions. [Au(abr)]

SMR primary record number: 637 Archaeological periods represented: PM OASIS ID: no

(G.59.4255/2008)

NZ49203270

Parish: Stranton Postal Code: TS26 0DS **TUNSTALL COURT, THE PARADE** Historical Assessment and Photographic Recording at Tunstall Court, The Parade, Hartlepool

Turnbull, P & Walsh, D Barnard Castle : Brigantia Archaeological Practice, 2008, 55pp, colour pls, figs, refs

Work undertaken by: Brigantia Archaeological Practice

A survey found that the layout of the house had remained largely unchanged since 1897. The building was now extremely vulnerable and its value lay largely in its wealth of interior detail and ornament, a symbol of the late 19th century affluence and optimism. [Au(abr)]

SMR primary record number: 606 Archaeological periods represented: PM OASIS ID: no

Northumberland

Alnwick

(G.35.4256/2008)

NY92529273

Postal Code: NE191AE

Parish: Elsdon HAINING, ELSDON Haining, Elsdon, Northumberland. An Historic & Archaeological Assessment

Riding Mill : Peter F Ryder, 2008, 16pp, colour pls, figs, tabs, refs Ryder, P F Work undertaken by: Peter F Ryder

Haining was an isolated ruined farmstead, located in the south bank of the Elsdon Burn. The house was a roofless shell, and comprised a T-plan building with its main block facing south, an attached outbuilding to the east, and a walled vard on the west of its small rear wing with another building to the north-west. [Au(adp)]

Archaeological periods represented: PM OASIS ID: no

(G.35.4257/2008)

Parish:

NU16060498

Postal Code: NE659LP

NEWTON GREENS FARMHOUSE, NEWTON ON THE MOOR Newton Greens Farmhouse, Newton on the Moor, Northumberland. A Standing **Building Assessment**

Ryder, P F Riding Mill : Peter F Ryder, 2008, 5pp, colour pls, figs, refs

Work undertaken by: Peter F Ryder

The house was considered to be of some local importance as a historic structure displaying evidence of a long building history, and together with its farm buildings, formed an instructive example of a small foldyard group. It was built in the 17th century and remodelled in 1889. [Au(adp)]

SMR primary record number: 4352 Archaeological periods represented: PM OASIS ID: peterfry2-40725

(G.35.4258/2008)

NU16100500

Postal Code: NE659LP

Parish: THE FARM BUILDINGS, NEWTON GREENS Newton Greens. The Farm Buildings

Ryder, P F Riding Mill : Peter F Ryder, 2008, 6pp, colour pls, figs *Work undertaken by:* Peter F Ryder

Building Recording was undertaken on of a series of 18th and 19th century farm buildings grouped around a foldyard, and attached to Newton Greens farmhouse. The farmhouse was the subject of a standing building assessment in April 2008. This assessment dealt with the associated group of traditional farm buildings to the north and west of the house. The earliest part was a barn dated 1744 incorporated in the West Range, most parts were late-18th or early 19th century and included a piggery/henhouse and Cart Shed. [Au(adp)]

Archaeological periods represented: PM OASIS ID: peterfry1-51247

(G.35.4259/2008)

Parish: Nunnykirk

NZ08119270

Postal Code: NE614NS

THE BOTHY, NUNNYKIRK HALL, NETHERWITTON

Report on an Archaeological Building Recording Project at The Bothy, Nunnykirk Hall, Netherwitton, Northumberland

Wooler, F Alston : North Pennines Archaeology Ltd., Report: CP/847/08 2008, 49pp, colour pls, figs, tabs, refs

Work undertaken by: North Pennines Archaeology Ltd.

An archaeological building recording project was undertaken of The Bothy, Nunnykirk Hall, Netherwitton, prior to the demolition of the south wall to allow for the erection of a new classroom block, and the refurbishment of the building. The Bothy was a Listed Building sited within the historic curtilage of Nunnykirk Hall, itself a Grade I Listed Building. A rapid deskbased assessment was undertaken to place the property and site of Nunnykirk Hall into its historical context. The rapid desk-based assessment revealed that there was some evidence for early medieval use of the site at Nunnykirk Hall from the discovery of an 8th/9th century cross shaft built into a cottage wall, although the original provenance is not known. Documentary sources suggested that there was an ecclesiastical site at Nunnykirk during the medieval period, hence its name, although nothing remains of such a site. A "tower" was mentioned in documents from the 17th century, although there was also no evidence for this on the site. The later hall was constructed in the 1820s by leading architect John Dobson for William Orde, and was a remodelling of an earlier manor house. Gardens were known to have surrounded this earlier house, however, the present landscape around Nunnykirk Hall was believed to be a rare example of Dobson's work. Cartographic sources did not show a building on the site of The Bothy until the 1860s when it was much longer and was shown to have had glasshouses against the south elevation. The building recording project revealed that The Bothy is a masonry built structure, with the unusual feature of having a brick-built south elevation, possibly constructed in the middle of the 19th century. The brick wall may have had a practical function in allowing for the retention and radiation of heat for glasshouses located against it. Further evidence for the possible presence of a heating system to provide warmth for vulnerable plants in the glasshouses was observed in the form of a possible "coal hole" in the north elevation, blackening of some stone and brickwork in the south-west internal corner of the building, and the presence of a chimney on the south elevation. Surviving low stone walls, or footings, and holes at the top of the south elevation, provided evidence for a building against the south elevation of The Bothy. The remains of walls and cartographic evidence indicated that further building or buildings originally extended from the west elevation and glasshouses occupied the south-side of these buildings up until at least the 1920s. [Au(abr)]

Archaeological periods represented: PM OASIS ID: northpen3-53698

(G.35.4260/2008)

Parish: Warkworth Postal Code: NE650YB **STURTON GRANGE, WARKWORTH** *Sturton Grange, Warkworth, Northumberland. Archaeological Buildings Recording*

Parker, J South Shields : Tyne & Wears Museum Archaeology Department, Report: 846 2008, 34pp, colour pls, figs, tabs, refs

Work undertaken by: Tyne & Wears Museum Archaeology Department

Building recording was carried out on a cluster of post-medieval farm buildings, prior to their conversion for residential use. The buildings formed a quadrangle around a central courtyard and were constructed from roughly hewn and roughly coursed sandstone. The north, east and half of the west range had been constructed by the time of the 1841 Tithe map, with the remainder of the west range and the south range built by 1856. The southern half of the courtyard had been covered by 1898, with the rest following by 1919. At some point, the southern range was converted into stables and the roofs removed from the courtyard. No further work was recommended. [Au(adp)]

Archaeological periods represented: PM, MO OASIS ID: tyneandw3-45214

Berwick-upon-Tweed

(G.35.4261/2008)

NU00495269

Postal Code: TD151JD

Parish: Berwick-upon-Tweed Postal PIER ROAD MALTINGS, BERWICK-UPON-TWEED Pier Road Maltings, Berwick-upon-Tweed. Historic Buildings Recording

Geck, SSouth Shields : Tyne & Wears Museum Archaeology Department, Report: 858 2008, 80pp, colour pls, figs, tabs, refs

Work undertaken by: Tyne & Wears Museum Archaeology Department

The Pier Road Maltings had been designated a Grade II Listed Building earlier in the year, as it represented a rare surviving example of a mid-19th century maltings. It contained well-preserved features of the maltings process. The individual building parts were distinctive in their character and appearance, and retained significant interior detail associated with their functions within the malting and other industrial processes. The exterior of the building demonstrated a complex functional and architectural history. Nine phases of activity were recorded by desk-based study, seven of which could be associated with the building itself. [Au(adp)]

Archaeological periods represented: PM

NU21650701

OASIS ID: tyneandw3-50079

(G.35.4262/2008)

NT94933372

Postal Code: NE716JQ

Parish: Ford **DEMESNE FARM, MILFIELD** An Archaeological Building Recording at Demesne Farm, Milfield, Northumberland

Gateshead : Archaeological Research Services, Report: 2008/63 2008, 26pp, Carev. C colour pls, figs, tabs, refs

Work undertaken by: Archaeological Research Services

The suite of buildings on the site comprised a main building with a car port/open barn constructed on the east end of the north-west elevation, and an open cattle court on the west end of the south-east elevation. A small barn was also recorded, and was scheduled for demolition. The main building was shown on mapping as early as 1842 and it was possible that it was associated with stables or a coach house, given the wide nature of the arched entranceways that existed in the south-east elevation. The small open barn was constructed between 1860 and 1897 and the car port/open barn between 1920 and 1960. There were few internal features of archaeological significance, apart from some examples of graffiti in the south wall of the Loft Area. [Au(adp)]

Archaeological periods represented: PM, MO OASIS ID: archaeol5-47071

Castle Morpeth

(G.35.4264/2008)

Parish: Longhorsley **MUCKLEY BUTTS, LONGHORSLEY** Muckley Butts, Longhorsley

NZ14209330

Postal Code: NE658QT

Thompson, M Morpeth : Malcolm Thompson, 2008, 2pp, colour pls, figs Work undertaken by: Malcolm Thompson

The report comprised a number of photographs and a letter. It was difficult to elucidate information relating to the nature of the project other than a survey was made of a built structure. [AIP]

OASIS ID: no

(G.35.4265/2008)

NZ11507450

Postal Code: NE200EB

Parish: Ponteland THE STABLE BLOCK, MILBOURNE HALL, PONTELAND The Stable Block, Milbourne Hall, Ponteland. Historic Buildings Record

The Archaeological Practice Ltd.Newcastle upon Tyne : The Archaeological Practice Ltd., Report: AP08/25 2008, 28pp, pls, colour pls, figs, tabs, refs Work undertaken by: The Archaeological Practice Ltd.

Milbourne Hall, a remarkable Grade I Listed house of 1807, was designed by John Paterson of Edinburgh for Ralph Bates, and comprised an elaborate plan in which the T-form of the house itself masked the elaborate layout of central rotunda and rooms opening from it. It was concluded that the exterior of the structure appeared to have been little altered since construction and survived well, although little of the original interior remained. The building

was to be converted to residential use, and no further archaeological work was recommended. [Au(adp)]

Archaeological periods represented: PM OASIS ID: thearcha2-43116

(G.35.4266/2008)

NZ21207940

Postal Code: NE616HB

Parish: Stannington ST. MARY'S HOSPITAL. STANNINGTON St. Mary's Hospital, Stannington, Northumberland. Historic Buildings Record

Carlton, R J Newcastle upon Tyne : The Archaeological Practice Ltd., 2008, 69pp, pls, figs, refs

Work undertaken by: The Archaeological Practice Ltd.

The hospital buildings were constructed from 1912 with major additions being added in 1928. Photographic recording noted that the earliest buildings on the site comprised the main part of the main hospital block and its administrative unit on its north side, displaying yellow brick banding. [Au(abr)]

Archaeological periods represented: MO OASIS ID: thearcha2-47498

Tynedale

(G.35.4267/2008)

NY05045920

Parish: BROOMLEY AND STOCKSFIELD

OASIS DATABASE: HINDLEY FARM, STOCKSFIELD: ARCHAEOLOGICAL RECORDING

Hindley Farm, Stocksfield, Northumberland: archaeological recording

Durham : Archaeological Services Durham University, Report: 2132 2008, Annis, R Wire-bound A4 report in grey card covers. White ring binder with colour slides and BW prints Work undertaken by: Archaeological Services Durham University

"Level 2 photographic and drawn survey of buildings in a C19th farmstead. Three structures were examined; a threshing barn, with a machine still in place, and two attached single-storey sheds; a cart shed; and a recent byre. Traces of a shed for a stationary engine were seen." [OASIS]

OASIS ID: archaeol3-52695

Redcar and Cleveland UA

(G.76.4268/2008)

NZ6126816442

Parish: GUISBOROUGH OASIS DATABASE: NORTHGATE SCHOOL, GUISBOROUGH Northgate School, Guisborough

Hartlepool : Tees Archaeology, Report: TA 08/02 2008, A4 bound report Errickson, D. Work undertaken by: Tees Archaeology

"This project was carried out by a student placement at Tees Archaeology prior to the demolition of Northgate School (HER 6383). At the time of survey the roofing had been removed from the school and internal access was not possible. The survey consists of an external photographic study, written description and archive research." [OASIS]

OASIS ID: teesarch1-41421

(G.76.4269/2008)

Parish: Skelton and Brotton HOME FARM. SKELTON A Historic Buildings Assessment at Home Farm, Skelton

Sherlock, S Redcar : Stephen Sherlock, 2008, 30pp, pls, figs, tabs, refs Work undertaken by: Stephen Sherlock A photographic survey was made of the model farm created in or around 1878. The buildings included a stable, a double barn, a farmhouse, a cottage and modern buildings. [Au(adp)]

Archaeological periods represented: PM OASIS ID: stephens1-38144

Stockton-on-Tees

Stockton-on-Tees UA

(G.82.4270/2008)

Parish: Egglescliffe

Postal Code: TS160PL

CARTER MOOR FARMHOUSE, EAGLESCLIFFE Preliminary Heritage Appraisal and Impact Assessment. Carter Moor Farmhouse, Durham Lane, Eaglescliffe

Clemence, M London : CgMs, 2008, 16pp, pls, figs, refs Work undertaken by: CqMs The farmhouse was statutorily Listed Grade II with early an early 18th century construction and later alterations. The later house was double fronted and 1.5 storeys high. [Au(abr)]

OASIS ID: no

(G.82.4271/2008)

Postal Code: TS159EJ

NZ42031260

Parish: Yarm FRIARAGE DOVECOTE, YARM, STOCKTON-ON-TEES Building Monitoring at Friarage Dovecote, Yarm, Stockton-on-Tees

Daniels, R Hartlepool : Tees Archaeology, Report: TA08/05 2008, 12pp, colour pls, figs, refs Work undertaken by: Tees Archaeology Decay since the 1999 building survey of the likely 17th century dovecote was noted. [Au(adp)]

Archaeological periods represented: PM OASIS ID: no

NZ66011899

Postal Code: TS122LB

NZ41331518